
Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes June 20, 2011 1 
 

POLSON CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
LIBRARY MEETING ROOM 
MONDAY, JUNE 20, 2011, 7:00 P.M. 
 
ATTENDANCE:  City Commissioners:  Todd Erickson, John Campbell, Judy Preston, 
Mike Lies, Elsa Duford, Fred Funke, and Mayor DeVries presiding.  City Manager Todd 
Crossett and City Attorney James Raymond present.  Others present:  Ken Siler, Alan 
Joscelyn, Rory Horning, Robin Wallace, Irene Marchello, Lou Marchello, Ric Smith, 
Water and Sewer Superintendent Tony Porrazzo, Murat Kalinyaprak, Cort Marsh, Dean 
Logson, and Jay Snyder. 
 
Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited.   
 
APPROVAL OF PROPOSED AGENDA:  Commissioner Lies moved to approve the 
agenda as proposed, seconded by Commissioner Funke.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
APPOINTMENT – CITY COMMISSIONER WARD 1 – 3 APPLICANTS:  TODD 
ERICKSON, RORY HORNING, AND LOU MARCHELLO:  Todd Erickson informed the 
Commission of his time living and working in Polson.  He commented about positive growth for 
the schools and businesses in Polson, adding that he would be honored to represent his ward.  
Rory Horning commented about his time being a member of the community and expressed 
concern about the community being in crisis.  He noted that he could not filibuster a meeting as 
he was only one vote on the whole Commission.  He commented that it was time for a change 
and asked for their support.  Lou Marchello commented about his time living in Polson and 
serving on the Commission previously as Mayor and Commissioner.  He expressed that he cared 
for the City and the employees.  Commissioner Preston moved to appoint Rory Horning as 
City Commissioner Ward 1, seconded by Commissioner Duford.  Rory Horning commented 
that it was unfair to vote in that way, and suggested a ballot.  Commissioner Preston commented 
on her reasons for nominating Mr. Horning, adding that she appreciated his comments made at 
meetings even if she did not appreciate how they were said.  She felt that all sides should be 
heard and didn’t think anyone should be precluded from having a voice.  The motion failed, 
Commissioner Duford and Preston for, Commissioners Campbell, Lies, Funke and Mayor 
DeVries against.  Commissioner Campbell moved to appoint Todd Erickson as City 
Commissioner Ward 1, seconded by Commissioner Lies.  The motion carried 5-1, 
Commissioner Duford opposed.  Mayor DeVries thanked all of the interested parties for their 
applications.   
 
Mayor DeVries administered the Oath of Office for Todd Erickson.  He assumed his seat 
on the Commission.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA:   

A.  JUNE 1-15 CLAIMS 
Commissioner Funke moved to approve the consent agenda, item A, seconded by 
Commissioner Lies.  The motion carried 6-1, Commissioner Erickson abstained.   
 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes June 20, 2011 2 
 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES JUNE 6, 2011:  Commissioner Campbell 
moved to approve the minutes of June 6, 2011, seconded by Commissioner Funke.  
Commissioner Duford commented that City Manager Crossett’s statement that the City Attorney 
reports to him was not in the minutes, and she felt it would be good to include.  Murat 
Kalinyaprak commented that he wished to correct that he had meant he had only just begun 
recording meetings and he had wanted to declare that he would be from then on.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:  City Manager Crossett commended Polson Police Officer 
Wade Nash and Tribal Officer Walker Orsino for both being awarded the Medal of Honor from 
the Montana Association of Chiefs of Police for successfully rescuing a victim from the icy river 
water after he had jumped from the Armed Forces Memorial Bridge.   
 
There would be a bid package opening for Phase I of Skyline the following morning  at the 
Courthouse. 
 
He noted that Main Street’s chip sealing and restriping could be done as early as June 24th 
weather dependent.  The rodeo parade would be the same day, but he had already spoken to the 
organizers and they were prepared to move to 1st Street East if needed.  The chip sealing would 
be weather dependent and he had instructed the contractor to give them a firm date and let them 
know of any changes ASAP.  Mayor DeVries inquired if the Chamber had been notified, noting 
that their notifications were very helpful.  City Manager Crossett advised that they had, as well 
as the Polson Business Community, the radio and a City representative going door to door to 
alert the businesses.  He noted that they were avoiding any closures during July or August.   
 
City Manager Crossett advised that the majority of surveys were back from the businesses on 
Main Street, and overwhelmingly they had voted for new, wider striping at a reduced angle.  
There was also overwhelming support for the stop signs as approved for the prokect and 
installed.  He noted that a few businesses had been for removing some of the stop signs, but not 
from their block. A smaller majority supported not putting in a turn lane at Hwy 93, which at 
thos time is a somewhat academic question as MDOT had not approved a turn lane to date.  He 
noted that they would watch traffic patterns and opinions over the summer. If it looked like a 
turn lane was needed and supported, the City could pursue a process to obtain a turn lane. He 
further noted that this striping would, again, be temporary with permanent striping after the 
summer. So, there would be one more opportunity to correct anything that did not appear to 
work.  The City had not been approved   They were not approved for a turn lane on Main Street.   
The landscaping of the bulb outs would begin the current week.  The streets and parks 
department employee had already placed the top soil.  The new public parking area had an 
additional area that required landscaping, and the contracted landscaper would be donating that 
portion.  There would be a sign to direct people to the new public parking area.   
 
He noted that they were in the process of preparing the budget for the upcoming workshop.  
 
Mayor DeVries inquired about the golf course’s newly constructed bathroom facilities.  Dave 
Sheesley advised that it had opened up for public use the previous week.  
 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes June 20, 2011 3 
 

Ken Avison inquired how long the chip sealing would take.  City Manager Crossett advised that 
the chip sealing would require one day, and an additional day for the restriping.  The timing 
would be weather dependent and the availability of the asphalt.   
 
Commissioner Duford inquired if they had resolved the landscaping issues.  City Manager 
Crossett advised that they were opting to mound the landscaping.  They had looked at drainage 
beneath the soil, however it had proved too expensive.    
 
RESOLUTION #1021 – GASB 54 COMPLIANT SPENDING POLICY:  City Clerk Kala 
Parker advised that the Governmental Accounting Standards Board had changed how fund 
balances for governmental funds were reported into 5 different types; non-spendable, restricted, 
committed, assigned, and unassigned.  She noted the resolution had been reviewed by the 
Department of Revenue.  Commissioner Lies moved to approve Resolution #1021, seconded 
by Commissioner Funke.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
TWO-YEAR EXTENSION OF PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL – SUPER 
WALMART 3 LOT SUBDIVISION – PDC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
APPROVAL THROUGH JUNE 2013:  Jay Snyder, representing Walmart, read a letter from 
Walmart Real Estate Director Josh Rogers which explained Walmart’s intention to move forward 
and how their plans had developed.  He encouraged anyone with questions to contact Mr. 
Rogers.  City Manager Crossett noted that the extension of preliminary plat was to give an 
extension of 2 years for the subdivision of the land into the 3 lots.  Mayor DeVries noted that 
they were not changing any of the plans.  Commissioner Funke moved to approve the two 
year extension of preliminary plat approval for the Super Walmart 3 lot subdivision PDC 
development agreement until June 30th, 2013, seconded by Commissioner Lies.  
Commissioner Preston noted that she had not been involved in the original approval of the 
Walmart, but she questioned how a supercenter would improve the economy and lives of the 
residents of Polson.  Jay Snyder advised that there would be approximately 55 more employees 
in the new store, which would be similar to the current setup but would include groceries.  
Commissioner Preston questioned whether those would be new jobs, or employees from other 
stores that would shut down as a result.  Jay Snyder commented that a positive for residents 
would be lowered grocery prices.  Commissioner Campbell felt that the supercenter was in 
complete contradiction to the Main Street project.  He commented that after encumbering the 
property owners on Main Street with an SID, adding the supercenter would be huge competition 
for them.  Commissioner Preston expressed her agreement.  Dean Logson commented that a 
supercenter would have a larger budget table and that would enable Walmart to donate and give 
back more to the community.  Commissioner Campbell commented that the current Walmart 
seemed to serve the community well enough, adding that anything he wished to purchase from 
Walmart could be delivered from site to store at the current location.  Commissioner Preston 
expressed concern about traffic bottlenecking into town as a result.  Commissioner Duford 
agreed with Commissioners Preston and Campbell.  She expressed concern for the downtown 
businesses within the SID.  She felt there was not enough notice of the agenda item or time to go 
over the attachment.  She commented that Planning Official Weaver had been out of the office 
and she had been unable to talk to her about the agenda item.  She expressed that more 
information was needed and suggested tabling the item.  She also questioned the details of the 
donation water lines and booster donation from Walmart.  Commissioner Preston felt that the 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes June 20, 2011 4 
 

public did not have enough notice on the matter, and she herself had been out of town and had 
not reviewed the item until that morning.  Dean Logson commented that water lines and booster 
station had been a requirement for the special use permit to build the Walmart.  They were 
owned and maintained by the City.  Mayor DeVries advised that the original approval had been 
granted after many public hearings and meetings between the City Council and the City County 
Planning Board.  There were 49 conditions that Walmart had been required to meet as part of the 
approval process.  She felt this was not the proper time to be addressing those issues, as the only 
business on the agenda was a time extension.  She agreed that she would like the packets sooner.  
Commissioner Funke expressed agreement with Mayor DeVries.  He advised that Commissioner 
Lies and himself had served on the City Council at that time, and the various issues had been 
hammered out at length when the project went through the approval process.  Commissioner 
Erickson commented that based on the unemployment in the area, the jobs would be a huge 
benefit.  He felt that a Super Walmart would bring people in from the surrounding area, and that 
the Walmart would not affect the local businesses.  He added that the issues had been gone over 
at meetings that were so well attended they were held at the High School.  Mayor DeVries 
commented that many people she knew, particularly those with large families, went to Kalispell 
or Missoula to buy their groceries.  She felt that the addition of the grocery section in the Super 
Walmart would keep those shoppers here.  Commissioner Duford inquired about exhibit B, and 
noted that there had already been a 1 year extension granted.  She felt the new Commission 
members needed to be educated on the issues.  City Attorney James Raymond noted that recital 
one gave the history.  After the initial approval the project had been immersed in litigation for 
three years, and in 2008 they had requested a three year extension as a result, which expired at 
the end of the month.  He noted that neither the City, nor the MCA, codes included litigation 
related extensions.  Now they were back to request a two year extension, which they were 
entitled to ask for.  City Manager Crossett added that there was nothing prohibiting them from 
granting the two year extension in either code.  Mayor DeVries noted that City Manager Crossett 
and City Attorney Raymond had both been available for any questions the Commissioners might 
have had prior to the meeting.  Commissioner Duford maintained that they had not been aware 
soon enough.  City Manager Crossett commented that it would have been nice to have the 
corporation response sooner to the City’s correspondence; however both Walmart and City staff 
had worked hard to bring this before the Commission as quickly as possible, including working 
through weekends.  Commissioner Preston inquired about City Manager Crossett’s perspective 
on the Walmart being a value to the community.   City Manager Crossett advised that it was not 
his decision to make and rather that it was his duty  to process the application and bring it before 
the Commission.  At the request of Commissioner Preston he commented that personally he 
could see two sides to the issue and many salient arguments for or against.  He had moved to 
Polson after the planning decision and just prior to the Walmart litigation being resolved.  He 
advised Misters Horning and Kalinyaprak that if they would like to laugh or had something to 
say, they could have the floor.  He continued that Walmart had been a good neighbor, they had 
donated generously to the fire and police department and provided low and cost competition 
helping the consumer. A Super Wal Mart would provide jobs and potentially attract shoppers to 
town. On the other hand, he noted that Wal Mart provided potentially significant competition to 
local business and that they were not locally owned.  He commented that he had previously 
resided in a similar town that had similar concerns about a Super Walmart, however it was his 
anecdotal observation that most of the feared negative outcomes had not materialized. In any 
event, every town was different and he could not predict a specific outcome. He commented that 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes June 20, 2011 5 
 

a key benefit of the Main Street was to different Main Street business itself from the box stores.  
What Main Street offered was ambiance and character.  Commissioner Lies commented that 
preliminary plat had already been taken care of, the only things they were asking for were 
already approved and their conditions were met.  Commissioner Preston asked if they had to vote 
yes, and were they to assume those before them did their due diligence.  Commissioner Lies 
advised that those before her had done their due diligence.  Commissioner Duford inquired about 
the proposed fueling station.  Jay Snyder advised that Walmart was no longer adding fuel 
stations to their stores so it would not be a part of the new store.  Rory Horning commented that 
if they always do what they’d always done, they’d get what they’d always got.  He commented 
that she was a new official that had a right to hear everything that went with her vote.  He 
commented that he didn’t mean to chuckle, but some people would tell you not to pay attention 
to him.  He commented that if these corporate guys were courteous they would have had all the 
information ready.  He commented that it was her name and her vote on the record today.  He 
commented that people started to lean on those who spoke up and didn’t get with the program, 
and he appreciated what she said.  He commented that those corporate guys should jump up and 
give a presentation if they would like one.  He commented that corporate does that, pushes them 
to the wall, they could have been here any day.  He commented that if this store and this 
community was important to Walmart that corporate representative would have been there and 
not a letter.  Ken Avison commented that he took exception to talking to guests of Polson in that 
way.  Rory Horning told Mr. Avison to turn around and say it to the front.  Ken Avison replied 
that he was speaking and could turn how he wanted.  Mayor DeVries told Mr. Horning that Mr. 
Avison had the floor.  Rory Horning interrupted Mr. Avison.  Mayor DeVries gaveled and told 
Mr. Horning that Mr. Avison had the floor.  Ken Avison asked if the gentlemen would yield.  
Rory Horning commented again.  Mayor DeVries gaveled and told Mr. Horning that Mr. Avison 
had the floor.  Ken Avison commented on Mr. Horning’s treatment of the guests.  Mr. Horning 
again interrupted.  Mayor DeVries gaveled and asked Mr. Horning to kindly leave the meeting.  
Mr. Horning asked that they stop giving an opinion of him.  Mayor DeVries informed Mr. 
Horning that he did not have the floor and he continued to interrupt the meeting and asked him 
again to kindly leave the meeting.  Mr. Horning replied that was fine, but he would see them in 
court.  Ken Avison commented that he felt it was inappropriate to treat guests of the City in that 
manner.  Margie Hendricks asked him to explain what he had done.  Mayor DeVries gaveled and 
told Margie that if she wanted the floor she could have it next. Cort Marsh commented that he 
was not a big fan of Walmart, but he wondered why the Commissioners would put themselves in 
the position to be judge and jury to decide what businesses come into the town.  He inquired if 
they would do the same for chain restaurants or Murdocks.   He felt that if they fulfilled their 
requirements to come into an area, than they had the right to come into that area.  Murat 
Kalinyaprak commented that he would like to know what code made it okay for the Commission 
to grant 2 and 3 year extensions.  Mayor DeVries replied that they had been advised by the City 
Attorney that there was no specific limit to the extensions in either code.  They were acting under 
the auspices of the Attorney and she saw no reason to question that.  Murat Kalinyaprak 
commented that looking at the dates of the attachments he saw another last minute item to panic 
the Commission without enough information.  He questioned under what agreements the 
donations to the City from Walmart had been made under.  He wondered if there were contracts 
or promises to Walmart in relation to them.  He felt that should be clarified.  He commented on 
putting out an agenda item at the end of the week like this was not enough time, regardless if 
they had already received the preliminary approval.  He commented on the past history of the 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes June 20, 2011 6 
 

approval and the extensions granted.  He felt that all that should be considered before granting 
another extension.  He commented that other subdivisions had been held to the single extension 
of no more than one year, except when going for final plat.  He felt they would be seeing 
arguments for this case.  He commented that he was not necessarily against the Walmart, but 
they should go through the proper sequence.  He commented that they had raised their right hand 
to uphold the law, and in a couple cases, maybe because they were misled, they did not uphold 
the law.  And he hoped that they would.  Margie Hendricks inquired how much Walmart had 
spent on the water extension and booster station.  Alan Joscelyn commented that it was about 
$600,000.  He added that adding the extension and the pressure necessary to serve the store and 
the surrounding community serviced by that line was a condition of approval.  There was no 
agreement with City in regards to Walmart taking them back or being reimbursed the cost.  It 
was put in at the contractor’s cost.  It was approved by the City and was now owned by it.  
Margie Hendricks inquired if there was any agreement to reimburse Walmart as other 
subdivisions hooked up to that line.  Alan Joscelyn replied that he was not aware of any such 
agreement.  Margie Hendricks commented that she wanted to know if the private land owners on 
Skyview, Claffey and Mission View Drives had agreements with the private land owners.  
Mayor DeVries inquired if this had anything to do with the Walmart issue on the agenda.  
Margie Hendricks asked that they ask for a second legal opinion on the matter of Walmart’s 
extension.  She reviewed the past approval and court case involving the Walmart.  She suggested 
the City consider the three year extension beginning when the court case was settled in 
September 2009.  She commented that City and State codes say that approval is two years and 
extensions were one year.  She commented on the conditions of approval listed in the packet.  
She referenced City and State codes, she felt that they did not allow for a governing body to 
extend beyond one year.  She encouraged the Commissioners to go over those documents.  She 
cited an article in the Daily Interlake addressing legislature on extensions for preliminary plat.  
She commented that both State and Polson Codes say that only one year extensions were 
allowed.  She commented that the issue needed looked at for more than four days.  Ric Smith 
commented that he agreed Mr. Marsh.  He felt it was not the Commissioners choice was 
businesses came into town if they meet the requirements.  He added he had been at every 
meeting for the original approval, and they ended with a good result.  He commented that it was 
sad out there, this area needed job.  He commented that downtown business were different from 
Walmart.  He felt they would keep shoppers here and bring in new people. He expressed that he 
supported downtown, and he felt that the Walmart would help local businesses.  Tom Corse 
commented that he had served on the City Council when Walmart had gone through, and all 
steps had been taken.  There had been hundreds of public comments addressed.  Walmart had 
spent hundreds of thousands on water system improvement.  He commented that if they were to 
stop the Walmart with new ideological positions, they may be setting the City up for a lawsuit.  
He pointed out that all conditions had been met.  He encouraged the Commissioners to approve 
the extension.  He commented that Mrs. Hendricks had given her legal opinion on what 
extensions the City could grant, but he encouraged them to talk to their legal counsel who was an 
actual attorney.  He commented that he was disappointed that his representative waited until 4:00 
to come down to ask questions that she should already know from sitting in Council meetings for 
many years.  He encouraged the Commissioners to review them immediately, and if they have 
questions go down and get them answered.  He commented that it did not look good if they 
didn’t know what this or that was, he felt they should know those things before they get to the 
meeting.  He commented that if they had a point, they should make it, rather than asking a 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes June 20, 2011 7 
 

question, it made them look ignorant.  He encouraged them to approve the extension.  
Commissioner Duford responded that the packets had not come out until Thursday afternoon and 
there was no opportunity to talk to Planning Official Weaver.  Mayor DeVries asked to not have 
a discussion going back and forth.  Dennis Duty advised that he was a part of the project.  He 
commented that Walmart had done more than the City had asked.  He pointed out that the 
decision tonight would not affect the building of the Walmart.  The building of the Walmart 
would not be affected by their decision tonight, it was only whether or not they could subdivide 
the property to sell off a piece.  He commented that Walmart had been good neighbors, they 
support the police and fire department and schools.  He commented that it was not the City 
Commission’s decision who came into the City, only that they do it right.  He noted that the new 
booster and water lines was a great asset and for fire protection in that area.  He encouraged the 
Commissioners to approve the extension.  Robin Wallace of the Mariner’s Baseball league 
commented that Walmart had been very generous with donations to the local sports teams, more 
so than local small businesses.  Murat Kalinyaprak commented that Commissioner Preston had 
been a great Commissioner this evening and he hoped that she would run again in the upcoming 
election.  He commented that they were not trying to undo the preliminary plat, but whether they 
could give the second 2 year extension.  He commented that Mrs. Hendricks’s comments were 
more informative than they could ever get out of those guys or their City Attorney on the matter.  
He felt that they should get to the bottom of it before they vote.  He commented that they weren’t 
trying to stop anyone from coming to town.  He felt that if a plat expired they should go back to 
the City and pay their fees again, which was a loss to the City when the granted extensions.  He 
asked them to do it properly and not violate codes.  The motion carried 4-3, Commissioners 
Funke, Lies, Erickson, and Mayor DeVries in favor.  Commissioners Duford, Preston, and 
Campbell opposed.  Commissioner Preston commented that she appreciated people humoring 
her and she did learn things when she asked questions of others beyond the staff and City 
Attorney.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS OF SIGNIFICANT INTEREST TO THE PUBLIC 
NOT ON THE AGENDA:  Ken Avison asked the Commission and Mayor to forgive his 
comments if they were inappropriate or out of line, he had not meant to disrupt the meeting.   
 
Lita Fonda commented that if anyone was concerned about money for groceries staying in the 
local ecomony, they should buy food from local farmers and the farmers’ market.      
 
Jay Snyder commented that it was good to see passionate debate, and they would see what was 
mentioned in the letter he’d read would take place.   
 
Murat Kalinyaprak inquired whether the public had the right to make comments on the executive 
session.  Mayor DeVries replied that the public could comment on anything that wanted during 
public comment.  She advised that she did not know the nature of this litigation related executive 
session.  Murat Kalinyaprak felt the public had a right to know who was involved, what it was 
over, and be able to offer their views.  Mayor DeVries advised if the information was public at 
this time it would be on the agenda.  City Attorney Raymond advised that at this point the matter 
had not gone into litigation and so they could not divulge that information.  Once the matter went 
into litigation it would be public record and anyone could know.   
 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes June 20, 2011 8 
 

Mayor DeVries recessed the meeting at 8:31 p.m. and then reconvened in executive session.  
The City Attorney discussed litigation options with the Commission and received instructions.  
The meeting was reopened to the public, and there being no further business the meeting 
adjourned.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:50 p.m. 

________________________________ 
Mayor DeVries    

_______________________________________ 
Attest:  Kala Parker, City Clerk 


